Wright-Patterson Military Housing Privatization

Questions & Answers

Category Key

· Legal (L)

· Policy (P)

· Technical (T)

	No.
	Question & Answer
	Category

	1 
	Q:
What is the current number of occupied units?
	T

	2 
	A:
WPAFB will convey 1,733 family housing units to the Successful Offeror.  As of <<date>>, _____ of these conveyed units were uninhabitable, awaiting demolish; _____ were habitable, but vacant; and _____ were occupied.
	

	3 
	Q: 
What is the current demand for the units to be privatized?
	T

	4 
	A:
The current occupancy rate is 99% [WPAFB must confirm]
	

	5 
	Q:
Is renovation/construction and maintenance work continuing to be done on the units that are included in the project up to time that they are privatized?
	T

	6 
	A:
Maintenance work will continue on the units, but renovation work has been halted until the units are renovated through privatization.
	

	7 
	Q:
How is the decision made on which units to renovate and which to demolish in Page Manor?
	T, P

	8 
	A:
For the 413 units designated for demolition in East Page Manor, the WPAFB Family Housing Master Plan determined that the cost to renovate these units would exceed 70% or more of the cost to demolish and replace these units with new construction.  In accordance with AF policy, such units must be replaced.  Demolition of the 95 units in West Page Manor is being sought to open up the neighborhood to create more parking, and reduce congestion and density.  The Offeror has the flexibility to determine which units in West Page Manor to demolish to meet the 95 unit demolition requirement.
	

	9 
	Q:
Why does the project require so many two-bedroom units to be constructed?
	P,T

	10 
	A:
The determination of the number and type of units to be constructed was based upon a Housing Market Analysis (HMA) which evaluated the needs of the base.   Proposals with three or four bedroom units to fulfill the two-bedroom requirement will be looked at favorably by the project team.
	

	11 
	Q:
Is it possible to develop and construct in the open areas in Woodland Hills?
	T, P

	12 
	A:
The requirement for construction and the mix of units in each neighborhood can not be less than the RFP requirement.  However, proposals for ancillary facilities or other amenities in the open the areas will be looked at favorably by the project team.
	

	13 
	Q:
Can additional units be built on the 30 acres adjacent to Page Manor West above the new construction requirement for this project?
	T, P

	14 
	A:
Housing units can be built on the 30 acre site, however, the total number of housing units at Page Manor can not exceed the ______ requirement.  However, replacing the renovation of units with construction of new units will be looked at favorably by the Air Force.  In addition, the 30 acres can be used for ancillary facilities and other amenities that support the housing area.  
	

	15 
	Q:
How will proposals that have no scored costs to the government be viewed?
	T

	16 
	A:
Proposals with no scored costs to the government will be viewed favorably.
	

	17 
	Q:
Is there a specific rate of return determined by the Air Force that developer’s can expect?
	T, P

	18 
	A:
The Air Force has no requirement for the developer’s rate of return.  Offerors are encouraged to submit their best and most competitive proposal.
	

	19 
	Q:
Who is responsible for determining local property tax authorities and obligations for the project?
	L, P, T

	20 
	A:
It is the responsibility of the developer to work with local taxing authorities to determine local property tax obligations.  Offerors are encouraged to review the legal precedence set by the Hope Hotel located on WPAFB. 
	

	21 
	Q:
Will the developer be required to pay taxes on capital improvements?
	L, P, T

	22 
	A:
It is the responsibility of the Offeror to determine the applicability of taxes, including incomes taxes and property taxes.
	

	23 
	Q:
Is there any flexibility in the requirement that all housing be revitalized by 2010?
	P

	24 
	A:
No.  Air Force goal is to have all revitalization and new construction completed by 31 December 2010, 
	

	25 
	Q:
Can you define total project costs? Does it mean the development phase through 2010 and a reinvestment phase after 2010
	T

	26 
	A:
Total project cost includes all development costs, including revitalization , new construction, soft costs, and financing costs during the initial development phase through 20101.
	

	27 
	Q:
If required, how will government loans be distributed?
	P

	28 
	A:
The Air Force will not guaranty construction loans nor provide direct loans to fund construction.  Should a guaranty or government direct loan be proposed by the Offeror, these subsidies will only be available after construction and renovation are completed.
	

	29 
	Q:
Will the Air Force consider transferring all units on Wright-Patterson AFB to a developer if the developer is only allowed to rent units to military personnel only?
	P

	30 
	A:
The Air Force has determined that at this time it will only convey the 1733 severable units located in Page Manor and Woodland Hills.  However, the Air Force does reserve the right to enter into sole source negotiations with the Successful Offeror for the purpose of privatizing additional units at WPAFB in the future. 
	

	31 
	Q:
What are the expectations for hiring local labor or any other requirements for using local resources for the project?
	L, P, T

	32 
	A:
There are no requirements in the RFP for using local resources when participating in the project.  The only labor requirements are that Offerors must comply with the Davis-Bacon Act.  
	

	33 
	Q:
Are there any Small Business Administration (SBA) requirements?  
	L, P



	34 
	A:
There are no requirements for small business participation
	

	35 
	Q:
Has there been any environmental impact studies or assessment of the additional 30 acres of land adjacent to Page Manor West?
	L, T



	36 
	A:
The base is currently in the process of seeking an environmental assessment, however, the expectation is that there are no significant environmental issues with the additional 30 acres of land.
	

	37 
	Q:
Is the childcare center across from the maintenance facility being conveyed?
	T

	38 
	A:
No.
	

	39 
	Q:
Are residents required to mow their own lawn?
	P, T

	40 
	A:
Yes.
	

	41 
	Q:
What was dumped in the landfill?
	L,T

	42 
	A:
TBD.  
	

	43 
	Q:
What is the Air Force’s expectation with regard to lead paint abatement?
	L, P

	44 
	A:
The Air Force will require the developer to follow local and state standards and laws with regard to abatement and disposal of contaminated materials.  The Air Force has a responsibility to disclose the lead based paint condition, however, when the units are conveyed it will be the developer’s responsibility.  
	

	45 
	Q:
Will the development have exclusive federal jurisdiction?
	L, P

	46 
	A:
The land being leased to the Successful Offeror is currently under exclusive Federal jurisdiction.  However, the Air Force reserves the right to change the jurisdiction at it discretion.
	

	47 
	Q:
During the evaluation process, what happens between when the selection authority notifies Successful Offeror (anticipated December 2001) and Transaction Closure (anticipated April 2001)?
	L, P, T

	48 
	A:
There is a mandatory Congressional notification period of 45 days once the Successful Offeror has been selected.  The PSC and the AST will also use this time to work with the Successful Offeror to resolve administrative details and finalize documents in preparation for transaction closing. 
	

	49 
	Q:
Will oral presentations be a part of the Step Two phase?
	P,T

	50 
	A:
At this time, oral presentations are not envisioned; however, the Air Force reserves the right to conduct oral presentations if it deems necessary. 
	

	51 
	Q:
Will there be additional building permit inspections besides those for new construction?
	P,T

	52 
	A:
The RFP requires the developer to build and renovate in accordance with local codes and standards.  The developer will need to verify that codes are met before a certificate of occupancy is provided. 
	

	53 
	Q:
Is a proforma required for Step One?
	T

	54 
	A:
No.
	

	55 
	Q:
Is the project team considering changing the method of accounting for increases in grade to a monthly basis as opposed to its current first of the year status?
	P, T

	56 
	A:
TBD
	

	57 
	Q:
What level of design is required for Step Two Volume IV proposals?
	T

	58 
	A:
The RFP requires each proposal to contains consistent and sufficient information for evaluation of technical factors.  The intent of these submittals is to see that each Offeror’s design concept is acceptable, that no serious misconceptions exist, and that quality units are provided.
	

	59 
	Q:
What are the Montgomery County requirements for renovations?
	T

	60 
	A:
It is the responsibility of the Offeror to determine these requirements.
	

	61 
	Q:
Will the mix of units change over time?
	T

	62 
	A:
On-base demographics and the mix of units is not expected to change significantly.  However, over the 50 years of the project, the mix could change.
	

	63 
	Q:
Will the developer have the opportunity to use the landfill on base to deal with construction materials during renovation and construction?
	P, T

	64 
	A:
No.  The developer will need to use an off-site location for disposal of construction materials.
	

	65 
	Q:
Does Montgomery County have a requirement for the individual metering of water?
	P, T

	66 
	A:
It is the responsibility of the Offeror to determine these requirements 
	

	67 
	Q:
Is the subsidy on the government direct and/or guaranteed loan an annual appropriation or is it a one-time appropriation?
	L, P

	68 
	A:
This is a one-time appropriation that must be available at the time the contract is signed.
	

	69 
	Q:
For Step One proposals, is it possible to include on-going projects that were started prior to five years ago?
	T

	70 
	A:
Step One has a requirement for the Offeror to provide information on “relevant and recent” project experience.  For new construction, these projects must have been completed within the last five years.  For renovation and project management, these projects can be on-going and started prior to five years ago. 
	

	71 
	Q:
Who is responsible for determining potential developer liability issues with regard to construction and renovation of units for the Wright-Patterson project?
	L

	72 
	A:
Upon closing the transaction, the Successful Offeror will own all the conveyed improvements and, therefore, assume all the legal responsibilities of an owner.  
	

	73 
	Q:
Does the Air Force have information on the existing condition of the utility systems?
	T

	74 
	A:
General information regarding regarding the age and condition of the existing utility systems is provided in the RFP.  More detailed information is available in the document viewing room at the WPAFB Housing Privatization Office..
	

	75 
	Q:
Who pays the utility bill for common area amenities (i.e. pool) not conveyed to the developer?
	P, T

	76 
	A:
The Air Force will continue to pay utilities for common amenities not conveyed.
	

	77 
	Q:
Is a more recent Housing Market Analysis (HMA) available?
	T

	78 
	A:
No, a more recent HMA will not be completed before privatization.  The current HMA was completed <<date>>.
	

	79 
	Q:
Will common inflation factors be given to developers for use in proforma modeling?
	T

	80 
	A:
TBD.
	

	81 
	Q:
Will the developer have any flexibility with the trailer park residents along Page Manor?
	P

	82 
	A:
The developer will be allowed to negotiate with the residents of the trailer park and the Air Force will reserve the right to enter into exclusive negotiations with the Successful Offeror for the purpose of adding the trailer park land to the ground lease.
	

	83 
	Q:
Will as-built surveys that identify roads and utilities be available for Page Manor and Woodland Hills?
	T

	84 
	A:
Yes.  These documents are available in the document viewing room at WPAFB’s Housing Privatization Office.
	

	85 
	Q:
Are current contracts such as cable TV, refuse, and lawn care negotiable once the project has been conveyed to the developer?
	P

	86 
	A:
The Successful Offeror will be responsible for negotiating contracts for such services..
	

	87 
	Q:
Can the Air Force provide historical operating expense information for property management services for the base (i.e. service contracts, maintenance records)?
	P, T

	88 
	A:
TBD


	

	89 
	Q:
Does the Air Force have any renovation cost per unit information?
	T

	90 
	A:
No.
	

	91 
	Q:
Is the equity requirement calculated on the basis of cost of value?
	T

	92 
	A:
The equity requirement is to be determined on the basis of total development cost relative to the new construction and renovation completed by 31 December 2010. 
	

	93 
	Q:
Will there be any material changes to the RFP?
	T

	94 
	A:
The Air Force does not anticipate any material changes to the RFP that is currently posted to the web site (www.eypsc.com); however, once the final RFP is issued, Offerors are responsible for and strongly encouraged to review it thoroughly, as this RFP will define the final development and submittal requirements.
	

	95 
	Q:
Is there a projected date for utility privatization?
	P

	96 
	A:
TBD
	

	97 
	Q:
Are floor plans available?
	T

	98 
	A:
Yes, floor plans are in Appendix W of the RFP and will be posted to the web site on or before the date of final RFP issuance.
	

	99 
	Q:
What is the total amount of houses to be privatized?
	T

	100 
	A:
The total number of housing units to be conveyed is 1,733.  After demolition and new construction are completed, the total number of privatized units will be 1,536.
	

	101 
	Q:
What is the maintenance number referenced in the RFP?
	T

	102 
	A:
TBD
	

	103 
	Q:
What is the starting point for the second major renovation or replacement required by the RFP?
	T

	104 
	A:
The starting point is 25 years since their last major renovation. 
	

	105 
	Q:
What are the requirements going to be for exterior renovations?
	T

	106 
	A:
The RFP specifies the minimum exterior renovation requirements at Page Manor.  Offerors are expected to describe their plans for additional exterior renovation.
	

	107 
	Q:
Is the land lease subordinated or not?
	L

	108 
	A:
TBD
	

	109 
	Q:
Will fire and police services be local (public), military, or private?
	P

	110 
	A:
The Air Force will provide fire and police services.
	

	111 
	Q:
Are all units being constructed and renovated required to be metered for water and electric by the developer?
	P

	112 
	A: 
All units are required to be metered for gas and electric.
	

	113 
	Q:
Will Alternative Proposals be accepted?
	P

	114 
	A:
All proposals must meet the requirements of the RFP.  Proposals that do not meet the requirements of the RFP will be deemed non-compliant and unacceptable.  Proposals that exceed the requirements will be evaluated more favorably.  
	

	115 
	Q:
What is the rationale for the requirement to swap out the heating and air conditioning units every 12 years?
	T

	116 
	A:
TBD
	

	117 
	Q:
Will the developer be required to rewire the entire unit when the meter is installed to comply with Montgomery County and Green County codes?
	T

	118 
	A:
It is the responsibility of the Offeror to determine these requirements
	

	119 
	Q:
Will MILCON funding already appropriated be available for the developer to use on this project?
	P

	120 
	A:
Offeror are encouraged to minimize the amount of government subsidy and maximize private contributions and financing.
	

	121 
	Q:
Is the developer expected to meter each mobile home or just a master meter for the entire mobile home park?
	T

	122 
	A:
The mobile home park is not included in the current privatization project.
	

	123 
	Q:
Can the developer use tax credits for this project?
	L, P

	124 
	A:
The RFP does not specifically preclude any type of financing.  The Offeror must ensure that its proposal meets the requirements of the RFP.
	

	125 
	Q:
Can the developer charge for lockout services after hours?
	T

	126 
	A:
TBD
	

	127 
	Q:
Can the developer build the 90 single units using zero lot lines?
	P, T

	128 
	A:
TBD
	

	129 
	Q:
Is any of the land in Page Manor or the additional 30 acres in a flood plain?
	T

	130 
	A:
TBD
	

	131 
	Q:
Are soil samples available?
	T

	132 
	A:
TBD
	

	133 
	Q:
Will pet deposits only be required for 3 or more pets?
	P

	134 
	A:
Yes
	

	135 
	Q:
Can the developer charge the military tenant for damage beyond the reasonable wear and tear?
	P

	136 
	A:
TBD
	

	137 
	Q:
Will the project team consider a different value concept for the $10 million dollar property management threshold as some projects will not meet this requirement simply because of the time in which they were built?
	T

	138 
	A:
TBD
	

	139 
	Q:
Will the $10 million dollar property management threshold be calculated on a current value basis or by its initial cost?
	T

	140 
	A:
TBD
	

	141 
	Q:
How will the equity contribution by the developer above construction fees as referenced in the RFP section 3.3.3.11.1/2 be defined?
	T

	142 
	A:
The RFP requires a minimum of 6% cash equity contribution by the Successful Offeror.  This cash contribution is defined at total project cost, less the amount of the permanent loans and the net operating income during the construction period.  The Air Force wants to ensure that this equity remains in the project and therefore requires that to the extent that there are related party fees, credit support costs, or reserve funds in an Offerors proposal, the Government will require that such amounts be funded with equity over and above the minimum 6 percent requirement.  For example, if an Offeror proposed a 3 percent development fee, the Offeror would have a minimum of 9 percent for their respective equity requirement.
	

	143 
	Q:
When in the solicitation process will the developer be bound to the Lease or other legal documents?
	L, P

	144 
	A:
Beyond administrative changes, the Air Force is not anticipating any material changes to the legal documents.  Offerors asked to submit Step-Two proposals are expected to have reviewed and accepted the terms of the legal documents prior to award. 
	

	145 
	Q:
Will the government direct loan, if required, be distributed in phases?
	P

	146 
	A:
No.  There will be no phased funding of the direct loan.
	

	147 
	Q:
Can the page count for Volume I submissions be more than 30 pages?
	T

	148 
	A:
TBD
	

	149 
	Q:
For the demolition planned for Page Manor West, is there a fixed number requirement for the amount of units that have to be demolished?
	T

	150 
	A:
Yes.  The total number of demolished units must be 95.  Demolition these units is being sought to open up the neighborhood to create more parking, and reduce congestion and density.  The Offeror has the flexibility to determine which units in West Page Manor to demolish to meet the 95 unit demolition requirement.
	

	151 
	Q:
For the demolition planned for Page Manor West, do specific units need to be demolished?
	T

	152 
	A:
No.  The developer has the flexibility to determine which units to demolish and the flexibility to utilize the additional 30 acres in its demolition and development plan.
	

	153 
	Q:
Can you define key corporate team members as mentioned in section 5.5.1.2 of the RFP?
	T

	154 
	A:
Key corporate team members correspond to the joint venture partners, key corporate entities, and major subcontractors that make up the Offerors’ development, construction, property management, and financing team. 
	

	155 
	Q:
Can you define design and construction teams as reference in the RFP?
	T

	156 
	A:
TBD
	

	157 
	Q:
Will further guidance be given to developers concerning their level of involvement in negotiating utility agreements when utilities for the project are privatized?
	P

	158 
	A:
TBD


	

	159 
	Q:
Does Ernst & Young, as the Privatization Support Contractor, have in place conflict of interest precautions to guard against improper influence during the evaluation phase, as well as the improper use of business proprietary information during the evaluation phase?
	P

	160 
	A:
Yes.
	

	161 
	Q:
Will recreational facilities be conveyed to the developer?
	T

	162 
	A:
Yes, including two baseball diamonds and 49 playgrounds.
	

	163 
	Q:
Will the Air Force be reviewing franchise agreements currently in place with regard to the privatization project?
	L, T

	164 
	A:
TBD
	

	165 
	Q:
Who is the point of contact for the privatization transaction?
	T

	166 
	A:
The PSC is the point of contact for the privatization transaction.
	

	167 
	Q:
Can the developer bring in its own cable system?
	T

	168 
	A:
Yes.
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